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PART I  
   
Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements  
   
References in this report to “the Company”, “Superior”, “we”, “our”, or “us” mean Superior Uniform Group, Inc. together with its subsidiary, 
except where the context otherwise requires. Certain matters discussed in this Form 10-K are “forward-looking statements” intended to qualify 
for the safe harbors from liability established by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements can 
generally be identified as such because the context of the statement will include words such as we “believe,” “anticipate”,” expect” or words of 
similar import. Similarly, statements that describe our future plans, objectives, strategies or goals are also forward-looking statements. Such 
forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that may materially adversely affect the anticipated results. Such risks 
and uncertainties include, but are not limited, to the following: general economic conditions in the areas of the United States in which the 
Company’s customers are located; changes in the healthcare, resort and commercial industries where uniforms and service apparel are worn; 
the impact of competition; our ability to successfully integrate operations following consummation of acquisitions and the availability of 
manufacturing materials. Shareholders, potential investors and other readers are urged to consider these factors carefully in evaluating the 
forward-looking statements made herein and are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements. The forward-
looking statements made herein are only made as of the date of this Form 10-K and we disclaim any obligation to publicly update such forward-
looking statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.  
   
Item 1. Business  
   
Superior Uniform Group, Inc. was organized in 1920 and was incorporated in 1922 as a New York company under the name Superior Surgical 
Mfg. Co., Inc. In 1998, the Company changed its name to Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and its state of incorporation to Florida. Superior’s 
business has not changed in any significant way during the past five years.  
   
Although Superior operates for selling, promotional and other reasons through various divisions, nevertheless there are no significant distinct 
segments or lines of business; approximately 95% of its business consists of the sale of uniforms and service apparel, and miscellaneous 
products directly related thereto.  
   
Products  
   
Superior manufactures and sells a wide range of apparel and accessories for the medical and health fields as well as for the industrial, 
commercial, leisure, and public safety markets. Its principal products are:  
   

   
  • Uniforms and service apparel for personnel of: 

   
  • Hospitals and health facilities; 

   
  • Hotels, commercial buildings, residential buildings, and food service facilities; 

   
  • General and special purpose industrial uses; 

   
  • Commercial enterprises (career apparel for banks, airlines, etc.); 

   
  • Public and private safety and security organizations; 

   
  • Miscellaneous service uses. 

   
  • Miscellaneous products directly related to: 

   
  • Uniforms and service apparel specified above (e.g. operating room masks, boots, and sheets); 

   

  
• Linen suppliers and industrial launderers, to whom a substantial portion of the Superior’s uniforms and service apparel are sold; 

such products being primarily industrial laundry bags. 

   
Uniforms and service apparel account for 90-95% of total sales and revenues; no other single class of product listed above accounts for more 
than 10% of total sales and revenues.  
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  • Corporate and resort embroidered sportswear. 



Competition  
   
Superior competes with national and regional manufacturers and also with local firms in most major metropolitan areas. Superior competes with 
more than three dozen firms including divisions of larger corporations. The nature and degree of competition varies with the customer and 
market where it occurs. Industry statistics are not available, but we believe that Superior is one of the leading suppliers of garments to hospitals 
and industrial clean rooms, hotels and motels, food service establishments and uniforms to linen suppliers. Superior experiences competition 
primarily in the areas of product development, styling and pricing.  
   
Customers  
   
Superior has a substantial number of customers, the largest of which accounted for no more than 5% of its 2003 sales.  
   
Backlog  
   
Although Superior at all times has a substantial backlog of orders, we do not consider this significant since our backlog of orders at any time 
consists primarily of recurrent firm orders being processed and filled.  
   
Superior normally completes shipments of orders from stock between 1 and 2 weeks after their receipt. As of March 1, 2004, the backlog of all 
orders that we believe to be firm was approximately $5,038,000, compared to approximately $4,132,000 a year earlier.  
   
Inventory  
   
Superior markets itself to its customers as a “stock house” . Therefore, Superior at all times carries substantial inventories of raw materials 
(principally piece goods) and finished garments which requires substantial working capital. Superior’s principal raw materials are textile 
products, generally available from a number of sources.  
   
Intellectual Property  
   
While Superior owns and uses several trademarks, its mark “Fashion Seal Uniforms” (presently registered until August 7, 2007, subject to 
renewal) is important since more than 50% of Superior’s products are sold under that name.  
   
Environmental Matters  
   
In view of the nature of our business, compliance with federal, state, or local laws regulating the discharge of materials into the environment, or 
otherwise relating to the protection of the environment, has had no material effect upon our operations or earnings and we do not expect it to 
have a material impact in the future.  
   
Employees  
   
Superior employed 897 persons as of December 31, 2003.  
   
Item 2. Properties  
   
The Company has an ongoing program designed to maintain and improve its facilities. Generally, all properties are in satisfactory condition. The 
Company’s properties are currently fully utilized (except as otherwise noted), and have aggregate productive capacity to meet the Company’s 
present needs as well as those of the foreseeable future. The material manufacturing locales are rented for nominal amounts due to cities 
providing incentives for manufacturers to locate in their area - all such properties may be purchased for nominal amounts. As a result, it is 
believed that the subject lease expirations and renewal terms thereof are not material. Set forth below are the locations of our facilities:  
   

   

  
• Seminole, Florida - Plant of approximately 60,000 square feet owned by the registrant; used as principal administrative office and for 

warehousing and shipping, as well as the corporate design center. 

   

  
• Eudora, Arkansas - Plant of approximately 217,000 square feet, partially leased from the City of Eudora under lease requiring payment 

of only a nominal rental; used for manufacturing, warehousing, and shipping. 
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• Tampa, Florida - Plant of approximately 111,000 square feet, owned by the registrant; used for regional administrative offices, 

warehousing, shipping and small retail operation. 



   

  
• Miami, Florida - Plant of approximately 5,000 square feet, leased from private owners under a lease expiring in 2005; used for 

regional sales office, warehousing, shipping, and small retail operation. 

   

  
• McGehee, Arkansas - Plant of approximately 26,000 square feet, leased from the City of McGehee under lease requiring payment of 

only a nominal rental; used for manufacturing. 

   
  • Marietta, Georgia - Plant and warehouse of approximately 33,000 square feet leased from private owners. 

   
  • Portland, Oregon – Plant and warehouse of approximately 35,800 square feet leased from private owners. 

   
Item 3. Legal Proceedings  
   

  • Miscellaneous - Atlanta, Georgia, warehouse and sales office - leased; Lexington, Mississippi, used for manufacturing – owned. 

None.  
   
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders  
   

   
PART II  

   

  (a) None 

Item 5. Market Price of and Dividends on Superior’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.  
   

The principal market on which Superior’s common shares are traded is the American Stock Exchange; said shares have also 
been admitted to unlisted trading on the Midwest Stock Exchange.  

   
The table below presents, for our common shares, dividend information and the quarterly high and low sales prices as 
reported in the consolidated transaction reporting system of the American Stock Exchange.  

   

   
Our long-term debt agreements include covenants that, among other things, restrict dividends payable by us. Under the most restrictive debt 
agreement, retained earnings of approximately $14,255,000 were available at December 31, 2003 for declaration of dividends. We have declared 
cash dividends of $.135 per share in each of the quarters for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2002 and 2003. We expect that, so long as 
earnings and business conditions warrant, we will continue to pay dividends and that the amount thereof, as such conditions permit, and as the 
Directors approve, will increase from time to time.  
   
On March 1, 2004, registrant had 285 shareholders of record and the closing price for registrant’s common shares on the American Stock 
Exchange was $15.20 per share.  
   

4  

     

QUARTER ENDED  

     

2003  
   

2002  

     

Mar. 31 

   

June 30 

   

Sept. 30 

   

Dec. 31  
   

Mar. 31 

   

June 30 

   

Sept. 30 

   

Dec. 31 

Common Shares:                                                          

High     $ 12.48    $ 11.45    $ 14.80    $ 16.93    $ 10.90    $ 12.15    $ 11.30    $ 12.39 
Low     $ 10.20    $ 10.45    $ 11.00    $ 13.20    $ 8.95    $ 9.90    $ 9.35    $ 10.66 
Dividends (total for 2003-$.54; 2002-$.54)     $ .135    $ .135    $ .135    $ .135    $ .135    $ .135    $ .135    $ .135 



Equity Compensation Plan Information  
   
The following table provides information about our common stock that may be issued upon the exercise of options, warrants, rights and 
restricted stock under all our existing equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2003, including the 1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan and 
the 2003 Incentive Stock and Awards Plan:  
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Plan category  
   

Number of securities to 
 

be issued upon exercise 
of outstanding options, 

warrants and rights  
   

Weighted-average  
exercise price of  

outstanding options, 
warrants and rights 

   

Number of securities  
remaining available for  
future issuance under  

equity compensation plans 
(excluding securities  

reflected in column (a))  

     (a)    (b)    (c) 
Equity compensation Plans approved by Security 

holders     656,175    $ 10.72    2,418,725 
Equity compensation Plans not approved by Security 

holders     —        —      —   
           

Total     656,175    $ 10.72    2,418,725 
           



Item 6. Selected Financial Data  
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Years Ended December 31,  
   

2003  
   

2002  
    

2001  
   

2000  
   

1999  

Net sales     $ 134,324,365    $ 144,999,254     $ 153,205,568    $ 167,710,399    $ 168,005,646 
                

Costs and expenses:                                      

Cost of goods sold       86,207,906      95,221,013       100,698,472      109,904,587      110,902,060 
Selling and administrative expenses       38,616,045      40,932,512       40,682,374      43,984,724      41,202,030 
Interest expense       696,504      853,081       1,623,016      2,167,763      1,605,261 

                
       125,520,455      137,006,606       143,003,862      156,057,074      153,709,351 
                

Earnings before taxes on income, and 
cumulative effect of change in 
accounting principle       8,803,910      7,992,648       10,201,706      11,653,325      14,296,295 

Taxes on income       3,100,000      2,895,000       3,730,000      4,250,000      5,180,000 
                

Earnings before cumulative effect of 
change in accounting principle       5,703,910      5,097,648       6,471,706      7,403,325      9,116,295 

Cumulative effect of change in accounting 
principle, net of tax benefit of 
$2,560,000       —        (4,504,563 )     —        —        —   

                

Net earnings     $ 5,703,910    $ 593,085     $ 6,471,706    $ 7,403,325    $ 9,116,295 
                

Basic net earnings per common share:                                      

Earnings before cumulative effect of 
change in accounting principle     $ 0.79    $ 0.72     $ 0.91    $ 1.03    $ 1.17 

Cumulative effect of change in 
accounting principle, net of tax       —        (0.64 )     —        —        —   

                

Basic net earnings per common share     $ 0.79    $ 0.08     $ 0.91    $ 1.03    $ 1.17 
                

Diluted net earnings per common share:                                      

Earnings before cumulative effect of 
change in accounting principle     $ 0.78    $ 0.71     $ 0.91    $ 1.03    $ 1.17 

Cumulative effect of change in 
accounting principle, net of tax       —        (0.63 )     —        —        —   

                

Diluted net earnings per common share     $ 0.78    $ 0.08     $ 0.91    $ 1.03    $ 1.17 
                

Cash dividends per common share     $ 0.54    $ 0.54     $ 0.54    $ 0.54    $ 0.54 
                

At year end:                                      

Total assets     $ 102,973,933    $ 99,826,952     $ 112,914,563    $ 130,039,204    $ 122,852,112 
                

Long-term debt     $ 6,266,047    $ 7,445,068     $ 13,549,147    $ 29,530,239    $ 19,472,577 
                

Working capital     $ 66,212,497    $ 61,688,699     $ 65,117,560    $ 74,360,573    $ 62,693,929 
                

Shareholders' equity     $ 84,884,482    $ 80,110,389     $ 82,762,205    $ 81,641,863    $ 82,717,839 
                



Item 7. Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations  
   
OPERATIONS: In 2003 net sales decreased 7.4% in comparison to 2002 and in 2002 net sales decreased 5.4% in comparison to 2001. These 
decreases were attributed to the continued economic slowdown as our customers postponed or cancelled orders in an effort to reduce the impact 
of the slowdown on their own operations.  
   
As a percentage of sales, cost of goods sold were 64.2% in 2003, 65.7% in 2002 and in 2001. The decrease in 2003 was attributed to the 
continued transition of production to offshore sources.  
   
As a percentage of sales, selling and administrative expenses were 28.8% in 2003, 28.2% in 2002, and 26.6% in 2001. The increase in this 
percentage in 2003 is attributed to the overall decline in sales volume more than offsetting the impact of staffing and other cost reductions on 
selling administrative expenses. The increase in this percentage in 2002 is attributed to the following factors: the overall decline in sales volume 
more than offset the impact of staff reductions on selling administrative expenses; selling and administrative expenses for 2002 included bad 
debt expense of approximately $1,165,000 versus $584,000 in the prior year due primarily to the write off of one large account in 2002; during 
2002, the Company incurred approximately $360,000 in costs associated with the review of a potential acquisition that we are no longer 
pursuing; and finally, the 2001 selling and administrative expenses were reduced by a gain of $1,683,000 recorded as a result of the settlement of 
vendor matters.  
   
Interest expense as a percentage of sales was 0.5% in 2003, 0.6% in 2002, and 1.1% in 2001. The decreases in 2003 and 2002 are due to lower 
average borrowings outstanding and lower interest rates.  
   
The effective income tax rate in 2003 was 35.2%; in 2002 it was 36.2%; and in 2001 it was 36.6%. The decreases are primarily attributed to 
decreases in state income taxes.  
   
In 2003, the Company reported earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle of 4.3% of sales with a return of 6.9% on 
average shareholders’ equity. In 2002, the Company reported earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle of 3.5% of 
sales with a return of 6.3% on average shareholders’ equity. In 2001, the Company reported earnings before cumulative effect of change in 
accounting principle of 4.2% of sales with a return of 7.9% on average shareholders’ equity.  
   
The cumulative effect of change in accounting principle charge in the amount of $4,504,563, net of tax benefit of $2,560,000 was recognized in 
2002 as a result of the Company’s adoption of FAS No. 142. The Company completed its transitional impairment testing of goodwill during 
2002 and determined that its goodwill for certain reporting units was impaired.  
   
In 2003, the Company reported net income of 4.3% of sales with a return of 6.9% on average shareholders’ equity. In 2002, the Company 
reported net income of 0.4% of sales with a return of 0.7% on average shareholders’ equity. In 2001, the Company reported net income of 4.2% 
of sales with a return of 7.9% on average shareholders’ equity.  
   
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES: The Company uses a number of standards for its own purposes in measuring its liquidity, such as: 
working capital, profitability ratios, long-term debt as a percentage of long-term debt and equity, and activity ratios. In its computations, as in 
this report, all inventory figures are on a FIFO basis.  
   
The working capital of the Company at December 31, 2003 was approximately $66,213,000 and the working capital ratio, 6.7:1; for 2002, it was 
approximately $61,689,000 and the working capital ratio, 6.1:1. The Company has operated without hindrance or restraint with its present 
working capital, believing that income generated from operations and outside sources of credit, both trade and institutional, are more than 
adequate to fund the Company’s operations.  
   
In 2003, the Company’s percentage of total debt to total debt and equity was 8.1% and in 2002 it was 9.6%. The decrease is attributed primarily 
to decreased borrowings under the Company’s borrowing agreements as a result of the reduced working capital requirements in 2003.  
   
The Company has an on-going capital expenditure program designed to maintain and improve its facilities. Capital expenditures were 
approximately $2,051,000, $2,820,000, and $1,349,000, in the years 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. The Company at all times evaluates its 
capital expenditure programs in light of prevailing economic conditions. During 2004, the Company anticipates completing an upgrade of its 
central warehouse distribution system in Eudora, Arkansas. This project has an expected total cost of approximately $4,600,000 and is expected 
to be completed during the fourth quarter of 2004.  
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Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (con’t)  
   
During the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the Company paid cash dividends of approximately $3,895,000 and $3,818,000, 
respectively, on a quarterly dividend of $.135 per share. The Company reacquired and retired 35,000 and 16,000 of its common shares in the 
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, with costs of $366,000 and $178,000, respectively. The Company anticipates that it will 
repurchase additional shares of its common stock in the future as financial conditions allow.  
   
In 2003, cash and cash equivalents increased by $7,444,000. This increase is attributed to approximately $12,826,000 in cash provided from 
operations, offset by approximately $2,688,000 utilized in investing activities and approximately $2,693,000 utilized in financing activities.  
   
In 2002, cash and cash equivalents increased by $4,256,000. This increase is attributed to approximately $18,816,000 in cash provided from 
operations, offset by approximately $3,855,000 utilized in investing activities and approximately $10,706,000 utilized in financing activities.  
   
On March 26, 1999, the Company entered into a 3-year credit agreement with Wachovia Bank that made available to the Company up to 
$15,000,000 on a revolving credit basis. Interest is payable at LIBOR plus 0.60% based upon the one-month LIBOR rate for U.S. dollar based 
borrowings (1.72% at December 31, 2003). The Company pays an annual commitment fee of 0.15% on the average unused portion of the 
commitment. The available balance under the credit agreement is reduced by outstanding letters of credit. As of December 31, 2003, 
approximately $154,000 was outstanding under letters of credit. On March 27, 2001, the Company entered into an agreement with Wachovia 
Bank to extend the maturity of the revolving credit agreement. The revolving credit agreement matures on March 26, 2004. At the option of the 
Company, any outstanding balance on the agreement at that date will convert to a one-year term loan. The remaining terms of the original 
revolving credit agreement remain unchanged. The Company has received a verbal commitment from its lender to renew the revolving credit 
agreement for an additional 3-year period on terms substantially the same as the existing agreement. The Company also entered into a 
$12,000,000 10-year term loan on March 26, 1999 with the same bank. The term loan is an amortizing loan, with monthly payments of principal 
and interest, maturing on April 1, 2009. The term loan carries a variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.80% based upon the one-month LIBOR 
rate for U.S. dollar based borrowings. Concurrent with the execution of the term loan agreement, the Company entered into an interest rate swap 
with the bank under which the Company receives a variable rate of interest on a notional amount equal to the outstanding balance of the term 
loan from the bank and the Company pays a fixed rate of 6.75% on a notional amount equal to the outstanding balance of the term loan to the 
bank.  
   
On October 16, 2000, the Company entered into a 5-year term loan with Wachovia Bank. The term loan was an amortizing loan, with monthly 
payments of principal in the amount of $83,333 plus interest, scheduled to mature on November 1, 2005. The term loan carried a variable interest 
rate of LIBOR plus 0.80% based upon the one-month LIBOR rate for U.S. dollar based borrowings. The proceeds of this term loan were utilized 
to reduce the outstanding balance on the Company’s revolving credit agreement. Concurrent with the execution of the new term loan agreement, 
Wachovia Bank and the Company amended the March 26, 1999 term loan and the revolving credit agreement to revise the net worth 
requirements. The net worth requirements included below reflect this amendment. This term loan was paid in full in June 2001.  
   
The credit agreement and the term loans with Wachovia Bank contain restrictive provisions concerning debt to net worth ratios, other 
borrowings, capital expenditures, rental commitments, tangible net worth ($70,535,000 at December 31, 2003); working capital ratio (2.5:1), 
fixed charges coverage ratio (2.5:1), stock repurchases and payment of dividends. At December 31, 2003, under the most restrictive terms of the 
debt agreements, retained earnings of approximately $14,255,000 were available for declaration of dividends. The Company is in full 
compliance with all terms, conditions and covenants of the various credit agreements.  
   
The Company prepaid the balance of its 6.65% note payable to MassMutual, including a prepayment penalty of approximately $285,000, on 
March 18, 2002 utilizing cash balances on hand as of December 31, 2001 and additional cash generated from operations in the first quarter of 
2002. With funds from the credit agreement, anticipated cash flows generated from operations and other credit sources readily available, the 
Company believes that its liquidity is satisfactory, its working capital adequate and its capital resources sufficient for funding its ongoing capital 
expenditure program and its operations, including planned expansion for 2004.  
   

8  



Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (con’t)  
   
The following table summarizes our fixed cash obligations as of December 31, 2003 for the fiscal years ending December 31:  
   

   
The Company does not engage in any off-balance sheet financing arrangements. In particular, we do not have any interest in so-called limited 
purpose entities, which include special purpose entities and structured finance entities.  
   
Critical Accounting Policies  
   

     

2004  
   

2005  
   

2006  
   

2007  
   

2008  
   

2009 and  
thereafter  

   

Total  

Variable rate term loans 
and revolving credit 
facility     $ 1,179,000    $ 1,264,000    $ 1,352,000    $ 1,448,000    $ 1,551,000    $ 651,000    $ 7,445,000 

Other debt 
arrangements, 
including capital 
leases       —        —        —        —        —        —        —   

Operating leases       388,000      254,000      183,000      150,000      87,000      —        1,062,000 
                       

Total contractual cash 
obligations     $ 1,567,000    $ 1,518,000    $ 1,535,000    $ 1,598,000    $ 1,638,000    $ 651,000    $ 8,507,000 

                       

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements included in the Company’s Annual Report on 
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002. Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based upon 
our condensed consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America for the preparation of interim financial statements. The preparation of the financial statements requires us to make 
estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate the estimates that we have made. These estimates are based upon our historical experience and on 
various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Our actual results may differ from these estimates under 
different assumptions or conditions. We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates 
used in the preparation of our condensed consolidated financial statements.  
   
Revenue Recognition and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts  
   
The Company recognizes revenue in the period in which the product is shipped. Judgments and estimates are used in determining the 
collectability of accounts receivable. The Company analyzes specific accounts receivable and historical bad debt experience, customer credit 
worthiness, current economic trends and the age of outstanding balances when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. 
Management judgments and estimates are used in connection with establishing the allowance in any accounting period. Changes in estimates are 
reflected in the period they become known. If the financial condition of the Company’s customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment 
of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required. Material differences may result in the amount and timing of bad debt 
expense recognition for any given period if management makes different judgments or utilizes different estimates.  
   
Inventories  
   
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value. Judgments and estimates are used in determining the likelihood that new goods on 
hand can be sold to customers. Historical inventory usage and current revenue trends are considered in estimating both excess and obsolete 
inventories. If actual product demand and market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-
downs may be required.  
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Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (con’t)  
   
Insurance  
   
The Company self-insures for certain obligations related to health and workers’  compensation programs. The Company also purchases stop-loss 
insurance policies to protect it from catastrophic losses. Judgments and estimates are used in determining the potential value associated with 
reported claims and for losses that have occurred, but have not been reported. The Company’s estimates consider historical claim experience and 
other factors. The Company’s liabilities are based on estimates, and, while the Company believes that the accrual for loss is adequate, the 
ultimate liability may be in excess of or less than the amounts recorded. Changes in claim experience, the Company’s ability to settle claims or 
other estimates and judgments used by management could have a material impact on the amount and timing of expense for any period.  
   
RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS: In December 2002, the FASB issued FAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based 
Compensation — Transition and Disclosure. FAS No. 148 amends FAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to provide 
alternative voluntary methods of transition to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, FAS No. 
148 amends the disclosure provisions of FAS No. 123 to require disclosure in the summary of significant accounting policies of the effects of an 
entity’s accounting policy with respect to stock-based employee compensation on the reported net income and earnings per share in annual and 
interim financial statements. FAS No. 148 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2002. The Company elected not to change to 
the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. The Company adopted the disclosure provisions of FAS No. 
148 for the quarter ending March 31, 2003. The adoption of FAS No. 148 has not had a material impact on the Company’s financial position and 
results of operations.  
   
On January 17, 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest 
Entities (“FIN No. 46”). FIN No. 46 addresses consolidation of entities that are not controlled through voting interests or in which the equity 
investors do not bear the residual economic risks and rewards. These entities have been commonly referred to as special purpose entities. FIN 
No. 46 provides guidance related to identifying variable interest entities and determining whether such entities should be consolidated. It also 
provides guidance related to the initial and subsequent measurement of assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests in newly consolidated 
variable interest entities and requires disclosures for both the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity and other beneficiaries of the entity. 
To date, the Company has not created any variable interest entities.  
   
In April 2003, the FASB issued FAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities , which amends 
and clarifies accounting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and for hedging 
activities under FAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities . FAS No. 149 is generally effective for derivative 
instruments, including derivative instruments embedded in certain contracts, entered into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging 
relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The adoption of FAS No. 149 has not had a material impact on the Company’s financial position 
and results of operations.  
   
In May 2003, the FASB issued FAS No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity. 
FAS No. 150 establishes standards for how to classify and measure certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and 
equity. FAS No. 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the 
beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. The adoption of FAS No. 150 has not had a material impact on the 
Company’s financial position and results of operations.  
   
Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks  
   
The Company is exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates, which may adversely affect its results of operations and financial 
condition. The Company seeks to minimize the risks from these interest rates when considered appropriate, through the limited use of derivative 
financial instruments. The Company’s policy is to not use financial instruments for trading or other speculative purposes and is not a party to any 
leveraged financial instruments. The Company has debt obligations with variable interest rates tied to LIBOR which are described in “Liquidity 
and Capital Resources” as well as Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company estimates that a hypothetical increase 
in interest rates of 1% would have resulted in an insignificant increase in the Company’s interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2003. 
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Management’ s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (con’t)  
   
The Company has one interest rate swap agreement to hedge against the potential impact on earnings from increases in market interest rates of a 
variable rate term loan. Under the interest rate swap agreement, the Company receives or makes payments on a monthly basis, based on the 
differential between a specified interest rate and one month LIBOR. A term loan of $7,445,068 is designated as a hedged item for interest rate 
swaps at December 31, 2003.  
   
This interest rate swap is accounted for as a cash flow hedge in accordance with FAS 133 and FAS 138. As of the report date, the swap met the 
effectiveness test, and as such no gains or losses were included in net income during the year related to hedge ineffectiveness and there was no 
income adjustment related to any portion excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness. A gain of $256,000 associated with this interest 
rate swap agreement was included in other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2003. A loss of $464,000 was included in 
other comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2002. A loss of $440,000, which includes the transition adjustment of $48,000, was 
included in other comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2001. The fair market values of the interest rate swap of $648,000 and 
$904,000 are included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 
The original term of the contract is ten years.  
   
The Company is also exposed to changes in prevailing market interest rates affecting the return on its investments but does not consider this 
interest rate market risk exposure to be material to its financial condition or results of operations. The Company invests primarily in highly liquid 
debt instruments with strong credit ratings and short-term (less than three months) maturities.  
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data  
   
Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and Subsidiary  
   
Consolidated Statements of Earnings  
Years Ended December 31,  
   

   
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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2003  
   

2002  
    

2001  

Net sales     $ 134,324,365    $ 144,999,254     $ 153,205,568 
          

Costs and expenses:                        

Cost of goods sold       86,207,906      95,221,013       100,698,472 
Selling and administrative expenses       38,616,045      40,932,512       40,682,374 
Interest expense       696,504      853,081       1,623,016 

          
       125,520,455      137,006,606       143,003,862 
          

Earnings before taxes on income and cumulative effect of change in accounting 
principle       8,803,910      7,992,648       10,201,706 

Taxes on income       3,100,000      2,895,000       3,730,000 
          

Earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle       5,703,910      5,097,648       6,471,706 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax benefit of 

$2,560,000       —        (4,504,563 )     —   
          

Net earnings     $ 5,703,910    $ 593,085     $ 6,471,706 
          

Basic net earnings per common share:                        

Earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle     $ 0.79    $ 0.72     $ 0.91 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax       —        (0.64 )     —   

          

Basic net earnings per common share     $ 0.79    $ 0.08     $ 0.91 
          

Diluted net earnings per common share:                        

Earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle     $ 0.78    $ 0.71     $ 0.91 
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax       —        (0.63 )     —   

          

Diluted net earnings per common share     $ 0.78    $ 0.08     $ 0.91 
          

Dividends per common share     $ 0.54    $ 0.54     $ 0.54 
          



Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and Subsidiary  
   
Consolidated Balance Sheets  
December 31,  
   

   
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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2003  
    

2002  
  

ASSETS                   

CURRENT ASSETS                   

Cash and cash equivalents     $ 14,915,079     $ 7,470,719   
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $475,000 and $565,000, respectively       24,419,287       20,413,202   
Inventories       36,380,470       42,655,934   
Prepaid expenses and other current assets       2,156,065       3,270,339   

       

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS       77,870,901       73,810,194   
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET       18,289,436       20,059,164   
GOODWILL       741,929       741,929   
OTHER ASSETS       6,071,667       5,215,665   
       
     $ 102,973,933     $ 99,826,952   
       

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY                   

CURRENT LIABILITIES                   

Accounts payable     $ 5,400,401     $ 5,191,993   
Accrued expenses       5,078,982       5,825,422   
Current portion of long-term debt       1,179,021       1,104,080   

       

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES       11,658,404       12,121,495   
LONG-TERM DEBT       6,266,047       7,445,068   
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES       165,000       150,000   
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 10 and 11)                   

SHAREHOLDERS’  EQUITY:                   

Preferred stock, $1 par value - authorized 300,000 shares (none issued)       —         —     
Common stock, $.001 par value - authorized 50,000,000 shares, issued and outstanding - 7,370,612 

and 7,131,237, respectively.       7,371       7,131   
Additional paid-in capital       13,641,223       10,620,073   
Retained earnings       71,883,888       70,387,185   
Other comprehensive income (loss):                   

Cash flow hedges       (648,000 )     (904,000 ) 
       

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’  EQUITY       84,884,482       80,110,389   
       
     $ 102,973,933     $ 99,826,952   
       



Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and Subsidiary  
   
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity  
Years Ended December 31,  
   

   
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  

     

Common  
Shares  

    

Common 
Stock  

    

Additional  
Paid-In  
Capital  

    

Retained  
Earnings  

    

Accumulated  
Other  

Comprehensive 
Income (Loss)  

    

Total  
Shareholders’  

Equity  
  

Balance, January 1, 2001     7,123,327     $ 7,123     $ 9,750,850     $ 71,883,890     $       $ 81,641,863   
Common shares issued upon exercise 

of options     4,000       4       32,496       —         —         32,500   
Purchase and retirement of common 

shares     (94,440 )     (94 )     (129,365 )     (753,555 )     —         (883,014 ) 
Cash dividends declared ($.54 per 

share)     —         —         —         (3,834,658 )     —         (3,834,658 ) 
Comprehensive Income:                                                 

Net earnings     —         —         —         6,471,706       —         6,471,706   
Transition adjustment for FAS 133 

related to cash flow hedges     —         —         —         —         (48,000 )     (48,000 ) 
Net change during the period related to 

cash flow hedges     —         —         —         —         (392,000 )     (392,000 ) 
Net change during the period related to 

minimum pension liability     —         —         —         —         (226,192 )     (226,192 ) 
                                           

Other comprehensive loss                                             (666,192 ) 
                                           

Comprehensive Income                                             5,805,514   
               

Balance, December 31, 2001     7,032,887       7,033       9,653,981       73,767,383       (666,192 )     82,762,205   
Common shares issued upon exercise 

of options     114,350       114       989,244       —         —         989,358   
Purchase and retirement of common 

shares     (16,000 )     (16 )     (23,152 )     (155,132 )     —         (178,300 ) 
Cash dividends declared ($.54 per 

share)     —         —         —         (3,818,151 )     —         (3,818,151 ) 
Comprehensive Income:                                                 

Net earnings     —         —         —         593,085       —         593,085   
Net change during the period related to 

cash flow hedges     —         —         —         —         (464,000 )     (464,000 ) 
Net change during the period related to 

minimum pension liability     —         —         —         —         226,192       226,192   
                                           

Other comprehensive loss                                             (237,808 ) 
                                           

Comprehensive Income                                             355,277   
               

Balance, December 31, 2002     7,131,237       7,131       10,620,073       70,387,185       (904,000 )     80,110,389   
Common shares issued upon exercise 

of options     274,375       275       2,671,396       —         —         2,671,671   
Tax benefit from exercise of stock 

options     —         —         403,000       —         —         403,000   
Purchase and retirement of common 

shares     (35,000 )     (35 )     (53,246 )     (312,469 )     —         (365,750 ) 
Cash dividends declared ($.54 per 

share)     —         —         —         (3,894,738 )     —         (3,894,738 ) 
Comprehensive Income:                                                 

Net earnings     —         —         —         5,703,910       —         5,703,910   
Net change during the period related to 

cash flow hedges     —         —         —         —         256,000       256,000   
                                           

Other comprehensive income                                             256,000   
Comprehensive Income                                             5,959,910   
               

Balance, December 31, 2003     7,370,612     $ 7,371     $ 13,641,223     $ 71,883,888     $ (648,000 )   $ 84,884,482   
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Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and Subsidiary  
   
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS  
Years Ended December 31,  
   

   
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.  
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2003  
    

2002  
    

2001  
  

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES                           

Earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle     $ 5,703,910     $ 5,097,648     $ 6,471,706   
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided from operating 

activities:                           

Depreciation and amortization       3,602,074       4,217,197       4,772,846   
Provision for bad debts       218,000       1,165,536       584,000   
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options       403,000       —         —     
Deferred income tax (benefit) provision       15,000       460,000       (50,000 ) 
Changes in assets and liabilities:                           

Accounts receivable       (4,224,085 )     3,022,781       6,193,877   
Inventories       6,275,464       5,437,225       9,817,135   
Prepaid expenses and other current assets       1,114,274       291,162       (2,111,804 ) 
Accounts payable       208,408       (1,609,806 )     (2,168,864 ) 
Accrued expenses       (490,440 )     734,683       815,250   

         

Net cash flows provided from operating activities       12,825,605       18,816,426       24,324,146   
         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES                           

Additions to property, plant and equipment       (2,051,067 )     (2,820,406 )     (1,349,478 ) 
Reduction in property, plant and equipment       218,721       652,980       2,535,146   
Other assets       (856,002 )     (1,687,300 )     (290,777 ) 

         

Net cash (used in) provided from investing activities       (2,688,348 )     (3,854,726 )     894,891   
         

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES                           

Repayment of long-term debt       (1,104,080 )     (7,698,480 )     (17,507,561 ) 
Payment of cash dividends       (3,894,738 )     (3,818,151 )     (3,834,658 ) 
Proceeds received on exercise of stock options       2,671,671       989,358       32,500   
Common stock reacquired and retired       (365,750 )     (178,300 )     (883,014 ) 

         

Net cash used in financing activities       (2,692,897 )     (10,705,573 )     (22,192,733 ) 
         

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents       7,444,360       4,256,127       3,026,304   
Cash and cash equivalents balance, beginning of year       7,470,719       3,214,592       188,288   
         

Cash and cash equivalents balance, end of year     $ 14,915,079     $ 7,470,719     $ 3,214,592   
         



Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and Subsidiary  
   
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements  
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001  
   
NOTE 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:  
   
a) Business description  
   
Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and subsidiary (“ the Company” ) manufactures and sells a wide range of uniforms, corporate I.D., career apparel 
and accessories for the hospital and healthcare fields; hotels; fast food and other restaurants; and public safety, industrial, transportation and 
commercial markets, as well as corporate and resort embroidered sportswear. Revenue recognition from the sale of products is recorded at the 
time the finished goods are shipped.  
   
b) Basis of presentation  
   
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Fashion Seal 
Corporation. Intercompany items have been eliminated in consolidation.  
   
c) Cash and cash equivalents  
   
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase to be cash 
equivalents.  
   
d) Inventories  
   
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market.  
   
e) Property, plant and equipment  
   
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized, while replacements, maintenance and repairs 
which do not improve or extend the life of the respective assets are expensed currently. Costs of assets sold or retired and the related 
accumulated depreciation and amortization are eliminated from accounts and the net gain or loss is reflected in the statement of earnings.  
   
f) Goodwill  
   
Goodwill consists of the cost of acquired businesses in excess of the fair value of net assets acquired. We annually evaluate the recoverability of 
goodwill and take into account events or circumstances that warrant revised estimates of useful lives or indicate that an impairment exists. For 
the year ended December 31, 2001, we amortized goodwill over 20-40 years on a straight-line basis and goodwill amortization expense was 
approximately $419,000. There was no amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002.  
   
g) Impairment of long-lived assets  
   
In October 2001, the FASB issued FAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets , which is effective for fiscal 
years beginning after December 15, 2001. FAS No. 144 replaces FAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for 
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of . The accounting model for long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale applies to all long-lived assets, 
including discontinued operations, and replaces the provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, Reporting Results of Operations – Reporting the Effects 
of Disposal of a Segment of a Business , for the disposal of segments of a business. FAS No. 144 requires that those long-lived assets be 
measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, whether reported in continuing operations or in discontinued operations. 
Therefore, discontinued operations will no longer be measured at net realizable value or include amounts for operating losses that have not yet 
occurred. FAS No. 144 also broadens the reporting of discontinued operations to include all components of an entity with operations that can be 
distinguished from the rest of the entity and that will be eliminated from the ongoing operations of the entity in a disposal transaction. FAS No. 
144 did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.  
   
h) Depreciation and amortization  
   
Plants and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis at 2  1 / 2 % to 5% for buildings, 2  1 / 2 % to 20% for improvements, 10% to 20% 
for machinery, equipment and fixtures and 20% to 33  1 / 3 % for transportation equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the terms 
of the leases inasmuch as such improvements have useful lives equivalent to the terms of the respective leases.  
   
i) Employee benefits  
   
Pension plan costs are funded currently based on actuarial estimates, with prior service costs amortized over 20 years.  
   
j) Taxes on income  
   
The Company computes taxes currently payable upon determination of taxable income which differs from pre-tax financial statement income. 
Deferred taxes are provided on this difference, primarily the effect of computing depreciation of plant and equipment by accelerated methods for 
tax purposes and by the straight-line method for financial reporting purposes.  
   
k) Stock based compensation  
   
In December 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 148 (FAS) No. 
148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure.” This Statement amends FAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation,” to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-
based employee compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements regarding the 
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The Company continues to 
apply Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 for the method used to account for stock-based employee compensation arrangements, where 



applicable, but has adopted the disclosure requirements of SFAS 148 beginning with its first quarter ending March 31, 2003. The Company 
estimated the fair value of options utilizing the Black-Scholes option pricing model.  
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The following table illustrates the effect on net earnings and earnings per common share as if the fair value based method had been applied to all 
awards in each period.  
   

   
l) Earnings per share  
   

     

December 31,  

     

2003  
   

2002  
   

2001  

Net earnings, as reported     $ 5,703,910    $ 593,085    $ 6,471,706 
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based 

method for all awards, net of related tax effects       585,502      317,603      386,700 
           

Pro forma net earnings     $ 5,118,408    $ 275,482    $ 6,085,006 
           

Net earnings per common share:                       

Basic – as reported     $ 0.79    $ 0.08    $ 0.91 
           

Basic – pro forma     $ 0.71    $ 0.04    $ 0.86 
           

Diluted – as reported     $ 0.78    $ 0.08    $ 0.91 
           

Diluted – pro forma     $ 0.70    $ 0.04    $ 0.85 
           

Historical basic per share data under FAS 128 is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding. Historical diluted per share data 
under FAS 128 is reconciled by adding to weighted average shares outstanding the dilutive impact of the exercise of outstanding stock options.  
   
m) Comprehensive Income  
   
FAS 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income”  requires disclosure of comprehensive income in addition to the existing income statement. Other 
comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity during a period, from transactions and other events, excluding changes resulting 
from investments by owners (e.g., supplemental stock offering) and distributions to owners (e.g., dividends).  
   
n) Operating Segments  
   
FAS 131 “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information” requires disclosures of certain information about operating 
segments and about products and services, geographic areas in which the Company operates, and their major customers. The Company has 
evaluated the effect of this standard and has determined that currently we operate in one segment, as defined in this statement.  
   
o) Derivative Financial Instruments  
   
Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted FAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” as amended by 
FAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities - an Amendment to FASB Statement No. 133.” 
FAS 133 and FAS 138 established new accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments 
embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities. The cumulative effect of the adoption of FAS 133 and FAS 138, as of January 1, 2001 
resulted in a $48,000 decrease in other comprehensive income and had no impact on net income. The Company has only limited involvement 
with derivative financial instruments. The Company has one interest rate swap agreement to hedge against the potential impact on earnings from 
increases in market interest rates of a variable rate term loan. Under the interest rate swap agreement, the Company receives or makes payments 
on a monthly basis, based on the differential between a specified interest rate and one month LIBOR. A term loan of $7,445,068 is designated as 
a hedged item for interest rate swaps at December 31, 2003. This interest rate swap is accounted for as a cash flow hedge in accordance with 
FAS 133 and FAS 138. As of the report date, the swap met the effectiveness test, and as such no gains or losses were included in net income 
during the year related to hedge ineffectiveness and there was no income adjustment related to any portion excluded from the assessment of 
hedge effectiveness. A gain of $256,000 was included in other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2003. A loss of $464,000 
was included in other comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2002. A loss of $440,000, which includes the transition adjustment of 
$48,000, was included in other comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 2001. The fair market values of the interest rate swap of 
$648,000 and $904,000 are included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, 
respectively. The original term of the contract is ten years.  
   
p) Use of Estimates  
   
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates.  
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q) New Accounting Standards  
   
In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“FAS”) No. 141, 
Business Combinations, and FAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. FAS No. 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting 
be used for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. Use of the pooling-of-interests method is prohibited. FAS No. 142 changed 
the accounting for goodwill from an amortization method to an impairment-only approach. Thus, effective January 1, 2002, the Company was 
required to cease amortization of goodwill, including goodwill recorded in past business combinations, and to adopt the new impairment 
approach. In June 2001, the FASB issued FAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations . This statement addresses financial 
accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. 
The purpose of this statement is to develop consistent accounting of asset retirement obligations and related costs in financial statements and 
provide more information about future cash outflows, leverage and liquidity regarding retirement obligations and the gross investment in long-
lived assets. FAS No. 143 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The adoption of FAS No. 
143 did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. In April 2002, the FASB issued FAS No. 145, 
“Rescission of FAS No. 4, ‘Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt,’ Rescission of FAS No. 44, ‘Accounting for Intangible 
Assets of Motor Carriers,’ Rescission of FAS No. 64, ‘Extinguishment of Debt Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements,’ Amendment of 
FAS No. 13, ‘Accounting for Leases,’ and Technical Corrections”. FAS No. 145 also amends other existing authoritative pronouncements to 
make various technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their applicability under changed conditions. The rescission of FASB 
Statement No. 4 eliminates the requirement to report all gains and losses resulting from the early extinguishments of debt as extraordinary items. 
Statement 145 is effective for all transactions occurring after May 15, 2002. The Company adopted this Statement to be effective during the 
quarter ended March 31, 2003. As a result, the Company has reclassified an extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt of $292,000 to 
selling and administrative expenses and the related tax benefit of $105,000 to taxes on income in the accompanying 2002 statement of earnings. 
In June 2002, the FASB issued FAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities”. FAS No. 146 addresses the 
financial accounting and reporting for the costs associated with exit or disposal activities. FAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities 
that are initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of FAS No. 146 did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements.  
   
r) Reclassifications  
   
Certain reclassifications to the 2002 and 2001 consolidated financial statements have been made to conform to the 2003 presentation.  
   
NOTE 2 – Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:  
   
In June 2001, the FASB issued FAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,”  which eliminates the pooling method of accounting for all business 
combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and addresses the initial recognition and measurement of goodwill and other intangible assets acquired 
in a business combination. The Company has adopted this accounting standard.  
   
Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted FAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which addresses the financial 
accounting and reporting standards for the acquisition of intangible assets outside of a business combination and for goodwill and other 
intangible assets subsequent to their acquisition. This accounting standard requires that goodwill be separately disclosed from other intangible 
assets in the statement of financial position, and no longer be amortized but tested for impairment on a periodic basis.  
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The following table displays a reconciliation of previously reported net income and earnings per share to the amounts adjusted to exclude 
amortization expense related to goodwill, that is no longer being amortized upon the adoption of FAS No. 142, net of the related tax effect:  
   

   
In accordance with FAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of,” the 
Company has historically evaluated goodwill for impairment by comparing the entity level balance of goodwill to projected undiscounted cash 
flows, which did not result in an indicated impairment. FAS No. 142 requires that goodwill be tested for impairment at the reporting unit level 
upon adoption and at least annually thereafter or more frequently, if indicators of impairment arise, utilizing a two-step methodology. The initial 
step requires the Company to determine the fair value of each reporting unit and compare it to the carrying value, including goodwill, of such 
unit. The Company determined the fair value of each reporting unit by using a combination of present value and multiple of earnings valuation 
techniques and compared it to the reporting units’ carrying values. If the fair value exceeds the carrying value, no impairment loss would be 
recognized. However, if the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the goodwill of this unit may be impaired. The amount, if 
any, of the impairment would then be measured in the second step. The Company completed the first step during the second quarter of 2002 that 
indicated that goodwill recorded in the Empire and Sope Creek divisions was impaired as of January 1, 2002. Due to the indicated impairment, 
the Company then completed step two of the test to measure the amount of the impairment. Based on that analysis, a transitional impairment loss 
of $7,065,000 ($4,505,000 after tax), or $0.63 per diluted share after tax, was recognized as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting 
principle. In accordance with FAS No. 142, this impairment loss was recorded as of January 1, 2002. We have also completed the annual 
impairment test at December 31, 2002 and 2003 which indicated no impairment of the remaining goodwill. We will continue to test goodwill 
and any identifiable intangible assets for impairment annually on December 31, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value may not be recovered.  
   
NOTE 3 - Inventories:  
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Year Ended December 31,  

     

2003  
   

2002  
   

2001  

Reported net earnings     $ 5,703,910    $ 593,085    $ 6,471,706 
Add: Goodwill amortization, net of tax       —        —        265,815 

           

Adjusted net earnings     $ 5,703,910    $ 593,085    $ 6,737,521 
           

Basic earnings per common share:                       

Reported net earnings     $ 0.79    $ 0.08    $ 0.91 
Goodwill amortization, net of tax       —        —        0.04 

           

Adjusted net earnings     $ 0.79    $ 0.08    $ 0.95 
           

Diluted earnings per common share:                       

Reported net earnings     $ 0.78    $ 0.08    $ 0.91 
Goodwill amortization, net of tax       —        —        0.04 

           

Adjusted net earnings     $ 0.78    $ 0.08    $ 0.95 
           

     

December 31,  

     

2003  
   

2002  

Finished goods     $ 30,826,116    $ 34,202,220 
Work in process       386,517      2,037,316 
Raw materials       5,167,837      6,416,398 
        
     $ 36,380,470    $ 42,655,934 
        



NOTE 4 - Property, Plant and Equipment:  
   

   
Depreciation and amortization charges were approximately $3,602,000, $4,217,000, and $4,354,000, in 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively.  
   
NOTE 5 – Long-Term Debt:  
   

   
On March 26, 1999, the Company entered into a 3-year credit agreement with Wachovia Bank that made available to the Company up to 
$15,000,000 on a revolving credit basis. Interest is payable at LIBOR plus 0.60% based upon the one-month LIBOR rate for U.S. dollar based 
borrowings (1.72% at December 31, 2003). The Company pays an annual commitment fee of 0.15% on the average unused portion of the 
commitment. The available balance under the credit agreement is reduced by outstanding letters of credit. As of December 31, 2003, 
approximately $154,000 was outstanding under letters of credit. On March 27, 2001, the Company entered into an agreement with Wachovia 
Bank to extend the maturity of the revolving credit agreement. The revolving credit agreement matures on March 26, 2004. At the option of the 
Company, any outstanding balance on the agreement at that date will convert to a one-year term loan. The remaining terms of the original 
revolving credit agreement remain unchanged. The Company has received a verbal commitment from its lender to renew the revolving credit 
agreement for an additional 3-year period on terms substantially the same as the existing agreement. The Company also entered into a 
$12,000,000 10-year term loan on March 26, 1999 with the same bank. The term loan carries a variable interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.80% based 
upon the one-month LIBOR rate for U.S.dollar based borrowings. Concurrent with the execution of the term loan agreement, the Company 
entered into an interest rate swap with the bank under which the Company receives a variable rate of interest on a notional amount equal to the 
outstanding balance of the term loan from the bank and the Company pays a fixed rate of 6.75% on a notional amount equal to the outstanding 
balance of the term loan to the bank.  
   
On October 16, 2000, the Company entered into a 5-year term loan with Wachovia Bank. The term loan was an amortizing loan, with monthly 
payments of principal in the amount of $83,333 plus interest, scheduled to mature on November 1, 2005. The term loan carried a variable interest 
rate of LIBOR plus 0.80% based upon the one-month LIBOR rate for U.S. dollar based borrowings. The proceeds of this term loan were utilized 
to reduce the outstanding balance on the Company’s revolving credit agreement. Concurrent with the execution of the new term loan agreement, 
Wachovia Bank and the Company amended the March 26, 1999 term loan and the revolving credit agreement to revise the net worth 
requirements. The net worth requirements included below reflect this amendment. This term loan was paid in full in June 2001.  
   
The credit agreement and the term loans with Wachovia Bank contain restrictive provisions concerning debt to net worth ratios, other 
borrowings, capital expenditures, rental commitments, tangible net worth ($70,535,000 at December 31, 2003); working capital ratio (2.5:1), 
fixed charges coverage ratio (2.5:1), stock repurchases and payment of dividends. At December 31, 2003, under the most restrictive terms of the 
debt agreements, retained earnings of approximately $14,255,000 were available for declaration of dividends. The Company is in full 
compliance with all terms, conditions and covenants of the various credit agreements.  
   
Scheduled principal payments on long-term obligations are $1,179,000 in 2004; $1,264,000 in 2005; $1,352,000 in 2006; $1,448,000 in 2007, 
$1,551,000 in 2008, and $651,000 in 2009 and thereafter.  
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December 31,  

     

2003  
   

2002  

Land     $ 2,054,842    $ 2,080,661 
Buildings, improvements and leaseholds       10,233,075      10,390,362 
Machinery, equipment and fixtures       43,235,243      47,349,368 
        
       55,523,160      59,820,391 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization       37,233,724      39,761,227 
        
     $ 18,289,436    $ 20,059,164 
        

     

December 31, 
2003  

   

December 31, 
2002  

Note payable to Wachovia Bank, pursuant to revolving credit agreement, 
maturing March 26, 2004     $ —      $ —   

6.75% term loan payable to Wachovia Bank, with monthly payments of 
principal and interest, maturing April 1, 2009       7,445,068      8,549,148 

        
       7,445,068      8,549,148 
Less payments due within one year included in current liabilities       1,179,021      1,104,080 
        
     $ 6,266,047    $ 7,445,068 
        



NOTE 6 – Taxes on Income:  
   
Aggregate income tax provisions (benefits) consist of the following:  
   

   
The significant components of the deferred income tax liability are as follows:  
   

   
The difference between the total statutory Federal income tax rate and the actual effective income tax rate is accounted for as follows:  
   

   
NOTE 7 – Benefit Plans:  
   

     

2003  
   

2002  
   

2001  
  

Current:                         

Federal     $ 3,015,000    $ 2,244,000    $ 3,372,000   
State and local       70,000      191,000      408,000   

           
       3,085,000      2,435,000      3,780,000   
Deferred       15,000      460,000      (50,000 ) 
           
     $ 3,100,000    $ 2,895,000    $ 3,730,000   
           

     

2003  
   

2002  

Deferred income tax assets:                

Operating reserves and other accruals     $ 2,709,000    $ 2,807,000 
Deferred income tax liabilities:                

Book carrying value in excess of tax basis of property       2,231,000      2,560,000 
Deferred expenses       643,000      397,000 

        

Net deferred income tax liability     $ 165,000    $ 150,000 
        

     

2003 

    

2002 

    

2001 

  

Statutory Federal income tax rate     34.0 %   34.0 %   34.0 % 
State and local income taxes, net of Federal income tax benefit     0.5     1.6     2.6   
Other items     0.7     0.6     0.0   
         

Effective income tax rate     35.2 %   36.2 %   36.6 % 
         

Defined Benefit Plans  
   
Noncontributory qualified defined benefit pension plans, providing for normal retirement at age 65, cover all eligible employees (as defined). 
Periodic benefit payments on retirement are determined based on a fixed amount applied to service or determined as a percentage of earnings 
prior to retirement. Pension plan assets for retirement benefits consist primarily of fixed income securities and common stock equities.  
   
It is our policy to make contributions to the various plans in accordance with statutory funding requirements and any additional funding that may 
be deemed appropriate. Plan liabilities and the market-related value of our corporate plan assets are determined based on a November 1st 
measurement date and our factory plans are determined based upon a December 31st measurement date.  
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The following tables present the changes in the benefit obligations and the various plan assets, the funded status of the plans, and the 
amounts recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2003 and 2002:  
   

   
Included in the above table are pension plans with aggregate projected benefit obligations in excess of plan benefits. The aggregate projected 
benefit obligations for these plans were $12,659,000 and $13,255,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The fair value of plan assets 
for these plans were $9,889,000 and $8,416,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.  
   
Included in the above table are pension plans with aggregate accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan benefits. The aggregate 
accumulated benefit obligations for these plans were $10,024,000 and $10,015,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The fair value 
of plan assets for these plans were $9,889,000 and $8,416,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.  
   
The following table presents the net periodic pension expense under our plans:  
   

   

     

December 31,  
  

     

2003  
    

2002  
  

Changes in benefit obligation                   

Benefit obligation at beginning of year     $ 17,317,000     $ 15,311,000   
Service cost       699,000       760,000   
Interest cost       1,096,000       1,075,000   
Actuarial (gain) loss       (458,000 )     1,237,000   
Amendments       —         187,000   
Settlement       129,000       —     
Benefits paid       (1,676,000 )     (1,253,000 ) 

       

Benefit obligation at end of year       17,107,000       17,317,000   
       

Changes in plan assets                   

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year       12,614,000       12,376,000   
Actual return on assets       2,064,000       (795,000 ) 
Employer contributions       2,200,000       2,286,000   
Benefits paid       (1,676,000 )     (1,253,000 ) 

       

Fair value of plan assets at end of year       15,202,000       12,614,000   
       

Reconciliation of funded status                   

Underfunded status       (1,905,000 )     (4,703,000 ) 
Unrecognized net actuarial loss       1,993,000       3,782,000   
Unrecognized prior service costs       592,000       763,000   

       

Prepaid (accrued) benefit costs     $ 680,000     $ (158,000 ) 
       

     

2003  
    

2002  
  

Amounts Recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheet                   

Prepaid benefit cost     $ 2,030,000     $ 1,626,000   
Accrued benefit liability       (1,350,000 )     (1,966,000 ) 
Intangible asset       —         182,000   
Accumulated other comprehensive income (minimum pension liability adjustment)       —         —     

       

Net amount recognized     $ 680,000     $ (158,000 ) 
       

     

2003  
    

2002  
    

2001  
  

Service cost - benefits earned during the period     $ 699,000     $ 760,000     $ 663,000   
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation       1,096,000       1,075,000       1,039,000   
Expected return on plan assets       (1,002,000 )     (953,000 )     (1,115,000 ) 
Amortization of prior service cost       171,000       166,000       277,000   
Recognized actuarial loss (gain)       214,000       61,000       (182,000 ) 
Settlement loss       184,000       —         —     
Curtailment loss       —         —         35,000   
Termination loss       —         —         22,000   
         

Net periodic pension cost after curtailments and settlements     $ 1,362,000     $ 1,109,000     $ 739,000   
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The table below presents various assumptions used in determining the benefit obligation for each year and reflects the percentages for the 
various plans:  
   

   
The methodology used to determine the expected rate of return on the pension plan assets was based on review of actual returns in the past and 
consideration of projected returns based upon our projected asset allocation. Our strategy with respect to our investments in pension plan assets 
is to be invested with a long-term outlook. Therefore, the risk and return balance of our asset portfolio should reflect a long-term horizon. Our 
pension plan asset allocation at December 31, 2003, 2002 and target allocation for 2004 are as follows:  
   

   
We plan to contribute approximately $2,000,000 to our defined benefit pension plans in 2004.  
   
Defined Contribution Plan  
   

     

Discount Rate  
    

Long Term  
Rate of  
Return  

    

Salary Scale  

     

Corp. 

 
    

Plants 

 
    

Corp. 

 
    

Plants 

 
    

Corp. 

 
    

Plants 

 

2001     7.25 %   7.25 %   8.00 %   8.00 %   4.50 %   N/A 
2002     6.50 %   6.50 %   8.00 %   8.00 %   4.50 %   N/A 
2003     6.20 %   6.20 %   8.00 %   8.00 %   4.50 %   N/A 

     

Percentage of  
Plan Assets at  
December 31,  

    
Target  

Allocation 
2004  

  

Investment description  
   

2003 

 
    

2002 

 
    

Equity securities     69 %   56 %   65 % 
Fixed income     31     44     35   
         

Total     100 %   100 %   100 % 
         

The Company provides a defined contribution plan covering qualified employees. The plan includes a provision that allows employees to make 
pre-tax contributions under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan provides for the Company to make a guaranteed match equal 
to 25% of each employee’s eligible contributions. The plan also provides the Company with the option of making an additional discretionary 
contribution to the plan each year. The Company contributions for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were approximately 
$148,000, $159,000 and $171,000, respectively.  
   
NOTE 8 – Vendor Settlement:  
   
On April 23, 2001, the Company received a one-time payment of $4.0 million in connection with the resolution of outstanding vendor matters. 
This resulted in a one time gain of $1,683,000 that is recorded as a reduction of selling and administrative expenses in the quarter ended June 30, 
2001. The remaining amount of $2,317,000 was recorded as a reduction in the basis of certain property, plant and equipment.  
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NOTE 9 – Quarterly Results for 2002 and 2003 (Unaudited):  
   

   
Results for the quarter ended March 31, 2002 reflect the impact of the change in accounting principles relative to FAS No. 142 as discussed in 
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.  
   
The independent certified public accountants made limited reviews of the 2002 and 2003 quarterly financial information in accordance with 
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Such reviews were substantially less in scope than examinations 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the objective of which is the expression of opinion 
regarding the financial statements taken as a whole, and accordingly, no such opinions were expressed.  
   
NOTE 10 – Rentals:  
   

     

Quarter Ended  

     

March 31,  
2002  

    

June 30,  
2002  

   

September 30,  
2002  

   

December 31,  
2002  

Net sales     $ 33,648,226     $ 38,442,104    $ 36,674,776    $ 36,234,148 
             

Earnings before taxes on income and cumulative effect of change in 
accounting principle     $ 666,491     $ 2,339,494    $ 2,430,883    $ 2,555,780 

             

Earnings before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle     $ 421,491     $ 1,489,494    $ 1,580,883    $ 1,605,780 
             

Net earnings (loss)     $ (4,083,072 )   $ 1,489,494    $ 1,580,883    $ 1,605,780 
             

Basic net earnings (loss) per common share     $ (0.58 )   $ 0.21    $ 0.22    $ 0.23 
             

Diluted net earnings (loss) per common share     $ (0.58 )   $ 0.21    $ 0.22    $ 0.22 
             

Dividends per common share     $ 0.14     $ 0.14    $ 0.14    $ 0.14 
             

Average outstanding shares (Basic)       7,035,154       7,064,423      7,086,098      7,112,066 
             

Average outstanding shares (Diluted)       7,092,721       7,179,197      7,173,225      7,224,341 
             

     

Quarter Ended  

     

March 31,  
2003  

    

June 30,  
2003  

   

September 30,  
2003  

   

December 31,  
2003  

Net sales     $ 30,954,947     $ 34,187,586    $ 35,212,248    $ 33,969,584 
             

Earnings before taxes on income     $ 966,186     $ 1,983,065    $ 3,059,887    $ 2,794,772 
             

Net earnings     $ 626,186     $ 1,283,065    $ 1,989,887    $ 1,804,772 
             

Basic net earnings per common share     $ 0.09     $ 0.18    $ 0.28    $ 0.25 
             

Diluted net earnings per common share     $ 0.09     $ 0.18    $ 0.27    $ 0.24 
             

Dividends per common share     $ 0.14     $ 0.14    $ 0.14    $ 0.14 
             

Average outstanding shares (Basic)       7,150,767       7,138,115      7,225,470      7,339,229 
             

Average outstanding shares (Diluted)       7,257,680       7,230,412      7,407,808      7,539,446 
             

Aggregate rent expense, including month-to-month rentals, approximated $744,000, $1,081,000, and $1,289,000, for the years ended December 
31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. Long-term lease commitments totaling $1,062,000 are as follows: 2004 - $388,000; 2005 - $254,000; 
2006 - $183,000; 2007 - $150,000; and 2008 - $87,000.  
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NOTE 11 – Contingencies:  
   
The Company is involved in various legal actions and claims arising from the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the 
ultimate outcome of these matters will not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations, cash flows, or financial position.  
   
NOTE 12 – Stock Options:  
   
In 1993 the Company adopted an Incentive Stock Option Plan (the “1993 Plan) under which options on 1,500,000 shares were reserved for grant. 
The 1993 Plan provided for the issuance of incentive stock options. This plan expired in February of 2003. In May, 2003, the stockholders of the 
Company approved the 2003 Incentive Stock and Awards Plan (the “2003 Plan), authorizing the granting of incentive stock options, non-
qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, performance stock and other stock based compensation. A total of 2,500,000 
shares of common stock (subject to adjustment for expirations and cancellations of options outstanding from the 1993 Plan subsequent to its 
termination) have been reserved for issuance under the 2003 Plan. All options under both plans have been or will be granted at prices at least 
equal to the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant. Options (all of which are exercisable at each respective year end) granted to date 
under both plans are exercisable in part or in full within five years of grant date. Proceeds from the exercise of options are credited to common 
stock to the extent of par value, and the balance is credited to additional paid-in capital. A summary of option transactions during the three years 
ended December 31, 2003 follows:  
   

   
The weighted average remaining life for options outstanding at December 31, 2003 was 2.8 years. At December 31, options available to issue 
were 531,275 for 2001, 468,675 for 2002 and 2,418,725 for 2003. Options have never been repriced by the Company in any year.  
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No. of  
Shares  

    

Weighted Average 
 

Exercise Price  
   

Total  
    

Market  
Price  

Outstanding January 1, 2001     727,075     $ 11.79    $ 8,570,654         

Granted     262,875       8.97      2,359,281     $ 2,349,294 
Exercised     (4,000 )     8.13      (32,500 )       

Lapsed     (98,950 )     10.57      (1,045,559 )       

Cancelled     (37,450 )     11.57      (433,316 )       

                

Outstanding December 31, 2001     849,550       11.09      9,418,560         

                

Granted     214,500       9.66      2,071,511     $ 2,061,513 
Exercised     (114,350 )     8.65      (989,358 )       

Lapsed     (105,575 )     13.89      (1,466,634 )       

Cancelled     (46,325 )     11.79      (545,958 )       

                

Outstanding December 31, 2002     797,800       10.64      8,487,823         

                

Granted     268,025       12.49      3,348,103     $ 3,338,099 
Exercised     (274,325 )     9.74      (2,671,671 )       

Lapsed     (112,050 )     15.76      (1,765,525 )       

Cancelled     (23,275 )     10.81      (251,663 )       

                

Outstanding December 31, 2003     656,175     $ 10.72    $ 7,037,433         

                



   
NOTE 13 – Earnings Per Share:  
   

     

Related Party  
Options  

    

Other Options  
  

Exercise price                   

2003     $ 11.02-$13.37     $ 11.02-$13.55   
2002     $ 10.45     $ 9.50 - $9.75   
2001     $ 9.35     $ 8.50 - $9.35   

Market price                   

2003     $ 11.02-$12.15     $ 11.02-$13.55   
2002     $ 9.50     $ 9.50 - $9.75   
2001     $ 8.50     $ 8.50 - $9.35   

Risk free interest rate                   

2003       2.80%-2.90 %     2.80%-2.90 % 
2002       4.30 %     3.81% -4.30 % 
2001       4.89 %     4.76% -4.89 % 

Expected option life       5 years       5 years   
Expected volatility                   

2003       28.2%-28.3 %     28.2%-29.3 % 
2002       28.1 %     28.1% -28.3 % 
2001       28.4 %     27.9% -28.4 % 

Dividend yield       4.5 %     4.5% - 4.9 % 

The following table represents a reconciliation of basic and diluted earnings per share:  
   

   
NOTE 14 – Accrued Expenses:  
   

   
   
NOTE 15 – Subsequent Event (Unaudited):  
   

     

2003  
   

2002  
   

2001  

Net Income used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per 
share     $ 5,703,910    $ 593,085    $ 6,471,706 

           

Weighted average shares outstanding       7,213,395      7,074,435      7,088,851 
Common stock equivalents       145,441      92,936      33,069 
           

Total weighted average shares outstanding       7,358,836      7,167,371      7,121,920 
           

Earnings per share:                       

Basic     $ 0.79    $ 0.08    $ 0.91 
           

Diluted     $ 0.78    $ 0.08    $ 0.91 
           

     

December 31,  

     

2003  
   

2002  

Salaries, wages, commissions and vacation pay     $ 1,372,880    $ 1,656,592 
Other accrued expenses       3,706,102      4,168,830 
        
     $ 5,078,982    $ 5,825,422 
        

Effective February 27, 2004, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of UniVogue, Inc. (“UniVogue”), a uniform manufacturer with 
a strong national presence, particularly in the hospitality, lodging, food service and culinary markets. The acquisition will be accounted for 
utilizing the purchase method of accounting. The acquisition price, subject to adjustment, was approximately $6,300,000 in cash plus assumption 
of certain operating liabilities. Total net assets acquired were approximately $3,800,000 and total revenues for 2003 were approximately 
$9,300,000.  
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NOTE 16 – Supplemental Information:  
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Year Ended December 31,  

     

2003  
   

2002  
   

2001  

Income taxes paid     $ 2,351,386    $ 2,079,607    $ 3,148,495 
           

Interest paid     $ 695,334    $ 876,826    $ 1,734,219 
           



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  
   
Directors and Shareholders  
Superior Uniform Group, Inc.  
Seminole, Florida  
   
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and subsidiary (the “Company”) as of 
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 2003. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  
   
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.  
   
In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of 
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 
2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
   
As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, as of January 1, 2002, the Company changed its method of accounting for 
goodwill and other intangible assets to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 and recorded a cumulative effect of a 
change in accounting principle as of January 1, 2002.  
   
As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2001, the Company changed its method of accounting for derivatives.  
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/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  
Certified Public Accountants  

Tampa, Florida  
February 27, 2004  



PART II  
   
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure  
   

NONE  
   
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures  
   

Our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s “disclosure 
controls and procedures” (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of 
the end of the period covered by this report, have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective and are 
designed to ensure that the information we are required to disclose is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the 
necessary time periods.  

   
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  

   
Our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the changes to the Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting that occurred during our fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2003, as required by paragraph (d) of Rules 13a-15(e) 
and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and have concluded that there were no such changes that 
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.  

   
PART III  

   
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant  
   

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in 
connection with its 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.  

   
Item 11. Executive Compensation  
   

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in 
connection with its 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.  

   
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management  
   

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in 
connection with its 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.  

   
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions  
   

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in 
connection with its 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.  
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Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services  
   

The information required-by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed in 
connection with its 2004 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.  

   
PART IV  

   
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K  
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Page  

(a)    1.    Consolidated Financial Statements       

          The following financial statements of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. are included in Part II, Item 8:       

          Consolidated statements of earnings - years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001     12 

          Consolidated balance sheets - December 31, 2003 and 2002     13 

          Consolidated statements of shareholders' equity - years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001     14 

          Consolidated statements of cash flows - years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001     15 

          Notes to consolidated financial statements     16-27 

          Independent Auditors' Report     28 

(a)    2.    Financial Statement Schedules       

  

        

All schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, or not required, or because the required information is 
included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.  

(a)    3.    Exhibits       

          See Exhibit Index       

(b)         Reports on Form 8-K:       

  

        

On October 23, 2003, the Company filed a report on Form 8-K containing a press release announcing its earnings for 
the third quarter of 2003.  

(c)         See (a) 3. above.       

    (d)         None       



SIGNATURES  
   

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, registrant has duly caused this report to be 
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
   

   
DATE: March 15, 2004  
   

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on 
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:  
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BY: 
  

/s/ Michael Benstock  

    Michael. Benstock  
    (Chief Executive Officer)  

BY: 
  

/s/ Andrew D. Demott, Jr.  

    Andrew D. Demott, Jr.  
    (Treasurer and Principal Accounting Officer)  

/s/ Gerald M. Benstock  
  

/s/ Alan D. Schwartz  

Gerald M. Benstock,  
March 15, 2004    

Alan D. Schwartz,  
March 15, 2004  

(Chairman)    (Director)  

/s/ Peter Benstock  
  

/s/ Robin Hensley  

Peter Benstock,  
March 15, 2004    

Robin Hensley,  
March 15, 2004  

(Director)    (Director)  

/s/ Manuel Gaetan  
  

/s/ Sidney Kirschner  

Manuel Gaetan,  
March 15, 2004    

Sidney Kirschner,  
March 15, 2004  

(Director)    (Director)  
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Exhibit No.:  
  

Description  

3.1  
  

Amended and restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registrant filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Interim Report on 
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1998 and incorporated herein by reference. 

3.2  
  

By-Laws of the Registrant filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s 1998 Interim Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
June 30, 1998 and incorporated herein by reference. 

4.1  
  

Credit Agreement dated March 26, 1999, between the Registrant and First Union, filed with the Commission as Exhibit 4.1 
in Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999 and is hereby incorporated herein by reference. 

4.2  

  

Note Agreement dated January 5, 1994 between the Registrant and Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Company filed 
with the Commission as Exhibit 4.2 in Registrant’s 1994 Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1994 which is hereby 
incorporated herein by reference. (The Registrant, by signing this Registration Statement, agrees to furnish the Commission 
upon its request a copy of any instrument which defines the rights of holders of long-term debt of the Registrant and which 
authorizes a total amount of securities not in excess of 10% of the total assets of the Registrant.) 

4.3  
  

Credit Agreement dated October 16, 2000, between the Registrant and First Union, filed with the Commission as Exhibit 
4.2 in Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000 and is hereby incorporated herein by reference. 

4.4  

  

Second amendment to Loan Agreement and Other Loan Documents between Registrant and First Union filed with the 
Commission as Exhibit 4.1 and Renewal of Revolving Credit Note filed with the Commission as Exhibit 4.2 in Registrant’s 
2001 Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2001 which is hereby incorporated by reference. 

10.1  
  

Description of the informal bonus plan for officers of the Registrant filed as Exhibit 10 to the Registrant’s 1992 Annual 
Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference. 

10.2  
  

1993 Incentive Stock Option Plan of the Registrant filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant’s August 18, 1993 Registration 
Statement on Form S-8 and incorporated herein by reference. 

10.3  
  

1994 Superior Surgical Mfg. Co., Inc. Supplemental Pension Plan filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant’s 1994 Annual 
Report on Form 10-K and incorporated herein by reference. 

10.4    Code of Ethics 

13. 
  

Forms 10-Q for the first three quarters of 2003 - herein incorporated by reference to Registrant’s filings thereof with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission. 

21.   Subsidiaries of the Registrant. 

23.   Independent Auditors’  Consent 

31.1  
  

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.SC Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

31.2  
  

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.SC Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

32.1    Written Statement of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.SC Section 1350 

32.2    Written Statement of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.SC Section 1350 



EXHIBIT 10.4 
   

SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.  
   

CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS  
   
Introduction  
   

This Code of Business Conduct and Ethics covers a wide range of business practices and procedures. It does not cover every issue that may 
arise, but it sets out basic principles to guide all employees, directors, contractors and suppliers of Superior Uniform Group, Inc., (the 
“Company.”) All Company employees and directors must conduct themselves accordingly and seek to avoid even the appearance of improper 
behavior.  
   

We invite the attention of our suppliers, contractors and business partners to our Business Conduct Guidelines found at www.worklon.com, 
under the manufacturing and distribution menu at vendor compliance. Specific requirements for vendors, contractors and suppliers as they relate 
to the subjects discussed in this Code may be found there.  
   

If the law conflicts with a policy in this Code, the employee or director must comply with the law; however if local custom or policy 
conflicts with this Code, the employee or director must comply with the Code. If an employee or director has any questions about these conflicts, 
he or she should ask the General Counsel for advice and assistance.  
   

Any employee or director who violates the standards in this Code will be subject to disciplinary action. If any supplier or contractor 
violates the standards and requirements stated in the Business Conduct Guidelines for suppliers, contractors and business partners, the Company 
reserves the right to terminate its business relationship with that entity. If anyone is in a situation that they believes may violate or lead to a 
violation of this Code or the Business Conduct Guidelines, they should follow the guidelines described in Section 21 of this Code.  
   
1. Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations  
   

Obeying the law, both in letter and in spirit, is the foundation on which this Company’s ethical standards are built. All employees, 
directors, suppliers, contractors and agents must respect and obey the laws of the cities, states and countries in which the Company operates. 
Although everyone is not expected to know the details of these laws, it is important to know enough to determine when to seek advice from 
supervisors, managers, the General Counsel or private legal counsel.  
   

The Company holds information and training sessions to promote compliance with laws, rules and regulations, including insider-trading 
laws.  
   
January 2004  
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2. Conflicts of Interest  
   

A “conflict of interest”  exists when an individual’s private interest interferes, or even appears to conflict in any way with the interests of 
the Company as a whole. A conflict situation can arise when an employee, officer, or director takes actions or has interests that may make it 
difficult to perform his or her work on behalf of the Company in an objective and effective manner. Conflicts of interest may also arise when an 
employee, officer, director or member of his or her family, receives improper personal benefits as a result of his or her position in the Company.  
   

It is almost always a conflict of interest for a Company employee to work simultaneously for a competitor, customer or supplier. An 
employee is not allowed to work for a competitor as a consultant or board member. The best policy is to avoid any direct or indirect business 
connection with the Company’s customers, suppliers or competitors, except on the Company’s behalf.  
   

Conflicts of interest are prohibited as a matter of Company policy, except under guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. Conflicts 
of interest may not always be clear-cut, so if a question arises, the employee or director should consult with higher levels of management or the 
General Counsel. Any employee, officer, or director who becomes aware of a conflict or potential conflict should bring it to the attention of a 
supervisor, manager, or other appropriate personnel, or consult the procedures described in Section 14 of this Code.  
   
3. Insider Trading  
   

Employees or directors who have access to confidential information are not permitted to use or share that information for stock trading 
purposes or for any other purpose except the conduct of the Company’s business. All non-public information about the Company is to be 
considered confidential information. To use non-public information for personal financial benefit or to “tip” others who might make an 
investment decision on the basis of this information is not only unethical but also illegal. If a question arises, all employees and directors are 
encouraged to review the Company’s Federal Securities Law Compliance Guidelines and/or the Company’s Confidentiality And Insider Trading 
Policy. Copies of the guidelines and the Confidentiality And Insider Trading Policy are available from the General Counsel. If the employee or 
director continues to have questions, they should contact the General Counsel or the Chief Financial Officer.  
   
4. Corporate Opportunities  
   

Employees, officers, and directors are prohibited from taking for themselves personally opportunities that are discovered through the use of 
corporate property, information, or position without the consent of the Board of Directors. No employee or director may use corporate property, 
information, or position for improper personal gain, and no employee or director may compete with the Company directly or indirectly.  



3 
   
Employees, officers and directors owe a duty to the Company to advance its legitimate interests when the opportunity to do so arises.  
   
5. Competition and Fair Dealing  
   

The Company seeks to outperform competitors fairly and honestly. The Company seeks competitive advantages through superior 
performance, never through unethical or illegal business practices. Stealing proprietary information, possessing trade secret information that was 
obtained without the owner’s consent, or inducing such disclosures by past or present employees of other companies is prohibited. Each 
employee, officer, and director should endeavor to respect the rights of and deal fairly with the Company’s customers, suppliers, competitors, 
and employees. No employee, officer, or director should take unfair advantage of anyone through manipulation, concealment, or abuse of 
privileged information, misrepresentation or material facts, or any other intentional unfair-dealing practice.  
   

To maintain the Company’s valuable reputation, compliance with the Company’s quality processes and safety requirements is essential. In 
the context of ethics, quality requires that the Company’s products and services meet reasonable customer expectations. All inspection and 
testing documents must be handled in accordance with all applicable regulations.  
   

The purpose of business entertainment and gifts in a commercial setting is to create good will and sound working relationships, not to gain 
unfair advantage with customers. No gift or entertainment should ever be offered, given, provided or accepted by any Company employee, 
family member or an employee, or agent unless it (1) is not a cash gift, (2) is consistent with customary business practices, (3) is not excessive in 
value, (4) cannot be construed as a bribe or payoff, and (5) does not violate any laws or regulations. As a general rule, our employees and 
directors should not accept any business entertainment or gift of a value of more than Twenty Five Dollars ($25.00). Any employee should 
discuss with his or her supervisor any gifts or proposed gifts that the employee is not certain are appropriate.  
   
6. Discrimination and Harassment  
   
        Equal Opportunity  
   

The Company understands that its ability to remain successful is contingent upon the development and utilization of the full range of 
human resources. At the heart of this principle is equal employment opportunity.  
   

It is the enduring policy of the Company to support equal employment opportunity to qualified individuals regardless of their race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin, age, or physical or mental disability, and to conform to applicable laws and regulations. All employees and 
directors will conduct the business affairs of the company without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age or physical or mental  
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disability or discriminate in any other manner that is prohibited by the law of the jurisdiction in which they conduct business operations.  
   

This policy is applicable to all facets of the employment relationship, including application and initial employment, promotion and transfer, 
selection for training opportunity, wage and salary administration, and the application of service, retirement, seniority, and employee benefit plan 
policies. The Company requires that all suppliers and contractors support equal opportunity in their operations.  
   
Sexual Harassment  
   

It is the obligation of all Company employees, suppliers and contractors to provide a work environment free from sexual harassment. 
Unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct or a sexual nature can be considered sexual 
harassment when either:  
   

   

   

   
Sexual harassment does not refer to occasional compliments of a socially acceptable nature. It refers to unwelcome behavior, which is 

personally offensive, and which interferes with work effectiveness.  
   

Sexual harassment is a violation of the law and will not be tolerated. Any employee who feels he or she may have been sexually harassed 
should notify the Director of Human Resources at (727) 803-7106. The Director of Human Resources will ensure that a prompt, impartial and 
confidential investigation will be conducted and that persons of the appropriate gender will be involved in the investigation to ensure that proper 
consideration for modesty, decorum and respect for the sensitivity of the subject matter of the complaint are observed. In the event the complaint 
is found to have merit, appropriate action will be taken.  
   
7. Health and Safety  
   

  (i) Submission to such conduct is made either as a direct or implied condition of the individual’s employment. 

  (ii) Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used for the basis of decisions affecting that individual’ s employment. 

  
(iii) Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonable interfering with an individual’s work performance or creating an offensive 

working environment. 

The Company strives to provide each employee with a safe and healthful work environment. Each employee has responsibility for 
maintaining a safe and healthy workplace for all employees by following safety and health rules and practices and reporting accidents, injuries, 
and unsafe equipment, practices, or conditions.  
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        Illegal Drugs and Controlled Substances  
   

The Company will take every reasonable precaution to ensure that the abuse of illegal drugs and controlled substances does not occur in 
the workplace. It is the policy of the Company to comply with applicable laws and regulations pertinent to the maintenance of a drug-free 
workplace. Any employee who abuses drugs or controlled substances presents a risk to himself or herself, as well as to customers, colleagues, 
and the public. It is a condition of employment that all Company employees adhere to the Company’s polices regarding illegal drugs and 
controlled substances.  
   

All employees and directors are prohibited from:  
   

(1) Engaging in the manufacture, distribution, unlawful possession, or unlawful use of any illegal drug or controlled substance, on 
Company property or while off premises performing work for the Company.  
   

(2) Reporting for work impaired by or working while impaired by any illegal drug or controlled substance.  
   

(3) Using the property of the Company to facilitate the manufacture, sale, unlawful possession or distribution of any illegal drug or 
controlled substance.  
   

Any employee or director who commits any action in violation of this policy is subject to disciplinary action up to and including discharge. 
Any employee or director who is convicted under a criminal statute for involving illegal drugs or controlled substances occurring inside or 
outside the workplace must provide written notification to the Company’s Human Resources Department not later than five (5) days after such 
conviction.  
   
8. Record Keeping  
   

The Company requires honest and accurate recording and reporting of information in order to make responsible business decisions. For 
example, only the true and actual number of hours worked should be reported.  
   

Many employees regularly use business expense accounts, which must be documented and recorded accurately. If an employee is not sure 
whether a certain expense is legitimate, the employee should ask his or her supervisor or the Chief Financial Officer. Rules and guidelines are 
available from the Accounting Department.  
   

All of the Company’s books, records, accounts, and financial statements must be maintained in reasonable detail, must appropriately 
reflect the Company’s transactions, and must conform both to applicable legal requirements and to the Company’s system of internal controls. 
Unrecorded or “off the books”  funds or assets should not be maintained unless permitted by applicable law or regulation.  
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Business records and communications often become public, and the Company and its employees should avoid exaggeration, derogatory 
remarks, guesswork, or inappropriate characterizations of people and companies that can be misunderstood. This applies equally to e-mail, 
internal memos, and formal reports. Records should always be retained or destroyed according to the Company’s record retention policies. In 
accordance with those policies, in the event of litigation or governmental investigation, employees or directors must consult with the Company’s 
Chief Financial Officer and the General Counsel before taking any action because it is critical that any impropriety or possible appearance of 
impropriety be avoided.  
   
9. Confidentiality  
   

Employees, officers, and directors must maintain the confidentiality of confidential information entrusted to them by the Company or its 
customers, except when disclosure is authorized by an executive officer or required or mandated by laws or regulations. Confidential 
Information includes all non-public information that might be of use to competitors or harmful to the Company or its customers, if disclosed. It 
also includes information that suppliers and customers have entrusted to us. The obligation to preserve confidential information continues even 
after employment ends.  
   
10. Protection and Proper Use of Company Assets  
   

All employees, officers and directors should endeavor to protect the Company’s assets and ensure their efficient use. Theft, carelessness, 
and waste have a direct impact on the Company’s profitability. Any suspected incident of fraud or theft should be immediately reported to your 
supervisor or the head of security for investigation. Company assets should be used for legitimate business purposes and should not be used for 
non-Company business, though incidental personal use may be permitted.  
   

The obligation of employees to protect the Company’s assets includes its proprietary information. Proprietary information includes 
intellectual property, such as trade secrets, patents, trademarks, and copyrights, as well as business, marketing and service plans, engineering and 
manufacturing ideas, designs, databases, records, salary information, and any unpublished financial data and reports. Unauthorized use or 
distribution of this information would violate Company policy. It could also be illegal and result in civil or even criminal penalties against the 
Company and/or the individuals involved.  
   
11. Unauthorized Payments  
   

The Company prohibits the offering, solicitation, or acceptance of kickbacks by any person or organization in any way involved in 
activities associated with the acquisition process or any other activities on behalf of the Company. Company employees and directors are 
prohibited from soliciting or accepting any kickback from a supplier, potential supplier, contractor, or potential contractor or including a 
kickback on  
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any contract. A “kickback” is defined as any money, fee, commission, credit, gift, gratuity, thing of value, or compensation of any kind that is 
provided for the purpose of improperly obtaining or rewarding favorable treatment in connection with a contract, the provision of services or the 
consideration for a business opportunity. This prohibition extends to members of the employee’s or director’s immediate family.  
   

Employees, directors, contractors and suppliers are also specifically prohibited from paying anything of value for the referral of a contract. 
If you are engaged in activities relating to a contract or prospective contract, you may not accept or provide anything of value from or to any 
actual or prospective supplier, subcontractor, or prime contractor for the purpose of improperly obtaining or rewarding favorable treatment in 
connection with a contract.  
   

The “Anti-Kickback Act of 1986” requires each prime contractor or subcontractor promptly to report a violation of the kickback laws to 
the appropriate Federal agency Inspector General or the Department of Justice if the contractor has reasonable grounds to believe that a violation 
exists.  
   

The Medicare Anti-Kickback Act prohibits any person from knowingly paying, offering, receiving or soliciting remuneration, directly or 
indirectly, in return for purchasing, leasing or ordering any item, good or service for which payment may be made under Medicare or Medicaid. 
This statute may prohibit providing gifts, gratuities, or other inducements to customers or potential customers. The Medicare Anti-Kickback Act 
may also prohibit certain discounting arrangements.  
   

If you do business with customers who submit claims to Medicare, Medicaid, or other federal health programs, you are expected to follow 
these rules. Any concerns pertaining to the applicability of this statute should be reported immediately to your supervisor or the General Counsel. 
You may report any questionable conduct to the Silent Witness or under the Whistle Blower Policy.  
   

Any conflict of interest, offer of a kickback, acceptance of a kickback, or other special treatment by an employee, director, supplier or 
contractor may result in the appropriate disciplinary action up to and including discharge or the disqualification of the supplier or contractor as a 
source for the Company. Any questions relating to kickbacks should be directed to the General Counsel.  
   
12. Dealing with Foreign Officials  
   

The Foreign Corrupt Practices Act prohibits offering anything of value to foreign officials for the purpose of improperly influencing an 
official decision. It also prohibits unlawful political contributions to obtain or retain business. Finally, it prohibits the use of false records or 
accounts in the conduct of foreign business.  
   

Employees, directors, contractors or suppliers may not promise, offer, or make payments in money, products, or services to any foreign 
official, either directly or  
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indirectly, in exchange for or to induce favorable business treatment or to affect any governmental decision. In some foreign countries, the law 
may permit minor payments to clerical personnel to expedite performance of their duties. Such minor payments may be made only with the 
express approval of the General Counsel, must never exceed Fifty Dollars ($50.00) per payment, and must never be made to gain or retain 
business.  
   
13. Fair Labor Standards  
   

The Company is committed to abiding by all labor laws. This includes, but is not limited to the Fair Labor Standards Act. We will not 
knowingly enter into a purchase agreement with any supplier or contractor who fails to comply with the requirements of the Business Conduct 
Guidelines for suppliers and contractors that may be found at our website or are available upon request. In summary, these guidelines provide:  
   

   

   

   

   

   
14. Political Activities  
   

  
(i) All contractors and suppliers must affirm each year that they are not currently in violation of the laws of the jurisdictions in which 

they operate regarding the payment of wages, overtime, hours of work, child labor, convict and forced labor and health and safety 
and that they will remain in compliance throughout the duration of our contract. 

  
(ii) Contractors and suppliers must agree to allow the Company to enter its premises during working hours for the purpose of inspecting 

working conditions. 

  
(iii) Contractors and Suppliers must agree to make any records and information available to the Company that may help to determine if 

they are in compliance with the laws and regulations mentioned in (ii) above. 

  

(iv) Should the Company discover that a contractor or supplier is not in compliance with the laws and regulations mentioned in (ii) 
above, it will be deemed a material breach of our contract with that contractor or supplier and, upon written notice, the Company will 
have no further obligation to fulfill its duties under the contract with that supplier or contractor. The Company will be entitled, in its 
sole discretion, to return items shipped by the contractor or supplier but not yet received by the Company. 

  
(v) Finally, the Company requires that all its contractors and suppliers be particularly vigilant about compliance with country of origin 

and other requirements of the U. S. Customs Service and related agencies, and with all similar requirements of other applicable 
jurisdictions. 

The Company strongly believes in the democratic political process and invites all employees and directors to take part in that process on 
their own time. However, law and regulation limit the Company’s activities. Therefore, no political contribution of  
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corporate funds or use of corporate property, services, or other assets may be made without the written approval of the General Counsel.  
   

Additionally, indirect expenditures on behalf of a candidate or elected official, including travel at Company expense and use of telephones 
and other Company equipment, may be viewed as a donation. Any questions in this regard should be referred to the Company’s General 
Counsel. Under no circumstances may any employee or director be reimbursed or compensated in any manner for political activities.  
   
15. Governmental Reporting Requirements  
   

Company employees shall comply with all applicable governmental reporting requirements on an accurate and timely basis. Copies of all 
such filings shall be retained in the Company’s files until destroyed in accordance with applicable record retention requirements.  
   
16. Contract Negotiations  
   

All certifications and representations to any customer, including the U. S. Government, must be accurate, current, and complete in all 
respects. Submissions to any customer of a proposal, quotation, or other document or statement that is false, incomplete or misleading may 
create civil and/or criminal liability for the Company, the employee(s), and anyone who condones such a practice. Each employee, director, 
contractor or supplier must be honest, accurate, and complete in every representation made on any claim or certification submitted.  
   
17. Bid Practices  
   

U.S. antitrust laws are enacted to promote competition and preserve the free enterprise system. These laws apply to all domestic and 
certain foreign business transactions by United States companies. Pricing, boycotts, and trade association activity present frequent antitrust 
issues, which require proper action on the part of the Company. The actions described below constitute infractions of the antitrust laws and must 
not be committed under any circumstances.  
   

   

   

   
All employees, directors, contractors and suppliers are directed to take special precautions in this area, as the antitrust laws are exceedingly 

complicated. This Code of  

  
(i) An agreement with one or more competitors to fix prices at any level or other terms and conditions of sale; to allocate customers or 

markets; to fix levels of production or production quotas; or to boycott a supplier or customer. 

  (ii) Any form of collusion in the submission of competitive bids (i.e., “bid rigging”). 

  (iii) An agreement with a customer to fix a resale price. 
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Business Conduct and Ethics are not intended as a replacement for legal advice. If any employees or directors have any questions concerning the 
applicability of the antitrust laws, they should contact the General Counsel. Any supplier or contractor should contact legal counsel of their 
choice.  
   
18. Government Source Selection Information  
   

Employees, directors, contractors and suppliers may not solicit or receive any source selection information, including U. S. Government 
source selection information, by any means other than through official channels. Source selection information includes, but is not limited to, 
listings of bid prices before bid openings, listings of proposed costs, source selection plans, technical evaluation plans, technical evaluations or 
proposals, cost or price evaluations or proposals, competitive range determinations, bid or proposal rankings, reports and evaluation of source 
selection panels, and other information specifically designated as “source selection information.”  
   
19. Waivers of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics  
   

Any waiver of this Code for executive officers or directors may be made only by the Board or a Board committee and will be promptly 
disclosed to the shareholders as required by law or stock exchange regulation.  
   
20. Reporting any illegal or Unethical Behavior  
   

Employees or directors are encouraged to talk to supervisors, managers, or other appropriate personnel when in doubt about the best course 
of action in a particular situation. Employees or directors should report any observed illegal or unethical behavior and any perceived violations 
of laws, rules, regulations, or this Code to appropriate personnel under Section 21 of this Code or to use the procedure outlined in the Company’s 
Whistle Blower Policy. It is the policy of the Company not to allow retaliation for reports of misconduct by others made in good faith by 
employees or directors. Employees or directors are expected to cooperate in internal investigations of misconduct.  
   
21. Compliance Procedures  
   

We must all work to ensure prompt and consistent action against violations of this Code. However, in some situations it is difficult to know 
right from wrong. Since we cannot anticipate every situation that will arise, it is important that we have a way to approach a new question or 
problem. These are the steps to keep in mind:  
   
  • Make sure you have all the facts. In order to reach the right solutions, we must be as fully informed as possible. 
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• Ask yourself : What specifically am I being asked to do? Does it seem unethical or improper? This will enable you to focus on 

the specific question you are faced with and the alternatives you have. Use your judgment and common sense; if something 
seems unethical or improper, it probably is. 

  
• Clarify your responsibility and role. In most situations, there is shared responsibility. Are your colleagues informed? It may help 

to get others involved and discuss the problem. 

  
• Discuss the problem with your supervisor. This is the basic guidance for all situations. In many cases your supervisor will be 

more knowledgeable about the question and will appreciate being brought into the decision making process. Remember that it is 
your supervisor’s responsibility to help solve problems. 

  

• Seek help from Company resources. In the rare case where it may not be appropriate to discuss an issue with your supervisor, or 
where you do not feel comfortable approaching your supervisor with your question, discuss it locally with your office manager 
or your Human Resources Manager. You may also contact the Company’s Chief Ethics Officer at 727-803-7170 or 1-800-632-
2252. If you would prefer, you may notify the Company of your concerns through the procedures established in the 
Whistleblower policy. If you do not believe any of these methods to be appropriate, you may call the Company’s toll free Silent 
Witness Program by dialing 1-800-338-2327. A trained Silent Witness operator will be on call twenty-four (24) hours per day, 
seven days a week. You will not be asked to give your name and the telephone call will not be recorded. 

  
• You may report ethical violations in confidence and without fear of retaliation. If your situation requires that your identity be 

kept secret, you anonymity will be protected. The Company does not permit retaliation of any kind against employees or 
directors for good faith reports of ethical violations. 

  • Always ask first, act later. If you are unsure of what to do in any situation, seek guidance before you act. 



EXHIBIT 21 
   

SUPERIOR UNIFORM GROUP, INC.  
   
List of Subsidiaries  
   
As of December 31, 2003, the Registrant directly owned the following subsidiary.  
   
Fashion Seal Corporation    Las Vegas, Nevada 



EXHIBIT 23 
   
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ CONSENT  
   
We consent to the incorporation by reference in this Registration Statement No. 2-85796 of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. on Form S-8 of our 
report dated February 27, 2004, appearing in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 
2003.  
   
/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP  

Tampa, Florida  
March 11, 2004  



EXHIBIT 31.1 
   

CERTIFICATION  
   
I, Michael Benstock, certify that:  
   

   
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Superior Uniform Group, Inc.; 

   

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect 
to the period covered by this annual report; 

   

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all 
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this annual report; 

   

4. Superior Uniform Group, Inc.’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) for Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and we have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to Superior Uniform Group, Inc., including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made 
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;  

   
b) evaluated the effectiveness of Superior Uniform Group, Inc.’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on 
such evaluation and  

   
c) disclosed in this report any change in Superior Uniform Group’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during its 

most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, Superior Uniform Group’s internal 
control over financial reporting; and  

   

   

5. Superior Uniform Group, Inc.’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to Superior Uniform 
Group, Inc.’ s auditors and the audit committee of Superior Uniform Group, Inc.’ s board of directors: 

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which are reasonably likely to adversely affect Superior 
Uniform Group, Inc.’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

   
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in Superior Uniform 

Group, Inc.’s internal controls over financial reporting.  
   
Date: March 15, 2004  

/s/ Michael Benstock  

Michael Benstock  
Chief Executive Officer  



EXHIBIT 31.2 
   

CERTIFICATION  
   
I, Andrew D. Demott, Jr., certify that:  
   

   
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Superior Uniform Group, Inc.; 

   

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact 
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect 
to the period covered by this annual report; 

   

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all 
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this annual report; 

   

4. Superior Uniform Group, Inc.’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) for Superior Uniform Group, Inc. and we have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to Superior Uniform Group, Inc., including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made 
known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;  

   
b) evaluated the effectiveness of Superior Uniform Group, Inc.’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our 

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on 
such evaluation and  

   
c) disclosed in this report any change in Superior Uniform Group’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during its 

most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, Superior Uniform Group’s internal 
control over financial reporting; and  

   

   

5. Superior Uniform Group, Inc.’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to Superior Uniform 
Group, Inc.’ s auditors and the audit committee of Superior Uniform Group, Inc.’ s board of directors: 

a) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which are reasonably likely to adversely affect Superior 
Uniform Group, Inc.’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and  

   
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in Superior Uniform 

Group, Inc.’s internal controls over financial reporting.  
   
Date: March 15, 2004  

/s/ Andrew D. Demott, Jr.  

Andrew D. Demott, Jr.  
Senior Vice President,  
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer  



EXHIBIT 32.1 
   

Written Statement of the Chief Executive Officer  
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350  

   
Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, I, the undersigned Chief Executive Officer of Superior Uniform Group, 

Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify, based on my knowledge, that the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended 
December 31, 2003 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that 
information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.  
   
  

  

/s/ Michael Benstock  

    Michael Benstock,  
    Chief Executive Officer  
    March 15, 2004  



EXHIBIT 32.2 
   

Written Statement of the Chief Financial Officer  
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350  

   
Solely for the purposes of complying with 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, I, the undersigned Senior Vice President, Treasurer, and Chief 

Financial Officer of Superior Uniform Group, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify, based on my knowledge, that the Annual Report on Form 
10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2003 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and 
results of operations of the Company.  
   
  

  

/s/ Andrew D. Demott, Jr.  

    Andrew D. Demott, Jr.  
    Senior Vice President,  
    Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer  
    March 15, 2004  


